ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
Cct ober 26, 2015
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak, Co-Chair
Representative David Tal erico, Co-Chair
Representati ve Bob Herron

Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative M ke Hawker, Vice Chair
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Ma Costello
Representative Sam Kito, |11

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW ALASKA O L AND GAS CONSERVATI ON COW SSI ON
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

DAN SEAMOUNT, Commi ssi oner

Al aska O | and Gas Conservation Commi ssion (ACGCC)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the rulings of the
Al aska G| and Gas Conservati on Comm ssi on.

CATHY FOERSTER, Conmi ssioner/ Chair

Al aska G| and Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOCGCC)
Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- Oct ober 26, 2015



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Presented an overview of the rulings of the
Al aska O | and Gas Conservation Conm ssi on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:00:17 AM

CO- CHAIR BENJAM N NAGEAK called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representatives Seaton,
Josephson, Tarr, Herron, Johnson, dson, Talerico and Nageak
were present at the call to order. Senator Costello and
Representative Kito were also in attendance.

OVERVI EW Al aska O | and Gas Conservati on Comm SSi on

CO CHAI R NAGEAK announced that the only order of business would
be an overview fromthe Alaska G| and Gas Conmm ssion (AOGCC) as
on Cctober 15, 2015 it ruled for an increase in allowable gas
of ftake from Prudhoe Bay and Pt. Thonpson. He described it as a
maj or mlestone required for the advancenent of the Al aska LNG
(AKLNG) proj ect.

8:01:46 AM

DAN SEAMOUNT, Conm ssioner, Alaska G| and Gas Conservation
Conmmi ssi on ( AOGCO) , Depart ment of Adm ni stration (DY) ,
identified hinself as the geol ogi st conm ssioner and noted that
t he geology of the area has been studied since the 1950s and is
wel | known. He said in 2000 there were discussions of building
the pipeline and producing in 2014, which caused him concern as
the timng would have been wong in that alnost a mllion
barrels [of oil] a day were being produced. He expl ai ned that
"if you start blow ng down the gas" the use of the gas recycling
for Enhanced G| Recovery (EOR) would not be as efficient as it
is currently. He remarked that it is good [the project] has
been delayed wuntil 2025, as [AOGCC] engineering and geol ogy
determ ned that by 2025 production of the gas can begin.

8:04: 43 AM

CATHY  FOERSTER, Comm ssi oner/ Chai r, Alaska Ol and (@as
Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC), Departnment of Admnistration,
said she would explain the recent rulings by the Alaska G| and
Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC) on gas offtake allowables
from Prudhoe Bay and Pt. Thonpson in anticipation of nmjor gas
sales from the North Slope in 2025, the rationale behind those
rulings, and what the rulings nmean going forward. She pointed

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- Oct ober 26, 2015



to slide 1, within her power point presentation, and noted that
Prudhoe Bay had an offtake allowable before this hearing of 2.7
BCF/ day, "but not really." During the [AOGCC] hearing the
of ftake all owable was changed to 3.6 BCF/day in anticipation of
an offtake in 2025. She pointed out that there was no offtake
allowable at Pt. Thonpson, and no pool rules - generally an
of ftake of gas from an oil or condensate field would happen in a
pool rule. Currently, she said, pool rules are in place for Pt.
Thonmpson wth an offtake allowable of 1.1 BCF/ day. The bottom
line, she explained, is that the conbination of those two is
sufficient offtake to neet the needs of the currently proposed
proj ect . Ms. Foerster turned to slide 2, and said the AOGCC s

responsibilities include: regulating oil, gas, and geothernal
exploration devel opnment and production throughout the State of
Al aska; overseeing all drilling, well work, well production

operations, and reservoir managenent on all state |ands and all
state waters. She related that its primary responsibilities are
to protect human safety, protect fresh ground waters, prevent
wast e, encourage (greater ultimate recovery, and protect
correlative rights. She highlighted that the categories of
preventing waste and encouraging greater ultinate recovery cone
into play when deciding on a gas offtake allowable from an oi

field. She referred to slide 3, and noted that all of the known
gas on the North Slope is in Prudhoe Bay and Pt. Thonpson,
"there is a lot of it,"” and it has been called stranded because

there was no way to get it to market. In that the AOGCC is
charged with encouraging greater ultimate hydrocarbon recovery,
its job is to help see that the gas does get to market. She

remarked that the sum of the two nunbers depicted on the slide
is the sum of the two nunbers the operators quoted in the
heari ng.

8:08: 03 AM
M5. FCERSTER pointed to slide 4, and highlighted that another

responsibility is to prevent waste. She explained that when gas
is taken from an oil field or condensate field, before the oil

and condensate have been produced, sone of the oil will be |ost.
She described the issue as an inportant concern for the AOGCC in
Prudhoe Bay where there are 2.5 billion barrels of oil left to

be produced, which is "huge."” She pointed out that 2.5 billion
barrels is approximately the sanme anount as the Kuparuk River
field (second largest field in North America) has produced since
it cane online 34 years ago. She then noted there is a large
anount of condensate at Pt. Thonpson that would al nost equal the
oil produced from the Swanson River field in the over 50 years
it has been in production and described that the | osses would be

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- Oct ober 26, 2015



enormous if Alaska had a gas pipeline too soon. She pointed out
t he conundrum AOGCC faces in that it has the task of encouraging
the gas to be produced while also protecting those liquids from
being wasted. She reiterated that allowing that gas to be sold
too soon would result in waste of a |large anount of the I|iquid,
but not allowing the operators and the state to take advantage
of what m ght be the only wi ndow of opportunity to sell the gas
woul d al so be wasteful in that it wouldn't encourage the greater
ultimate resource recovery of the gas. Wth regard to slides 5-
6, she said the AOGCC has been studying the effects of gas sal es
on the loss of liquids versus the ultimte recovery of the gas
since before 2005. She said the AOGCC is convinced, with the
assistance of world-class consultants and hard work, the
technical validity of the BP and Exxon reservoir nodels for

Prudhoe Bay and Pt. Thonpson are above reproach. She opi ned
that the AOGCC has taken the prudent course of participating
with BP and ExxonMobil Corporation in studies to assist in

determ ning how best to optimze both liquid and gas recovery.
She offered that over the years she has said that for Prudhoe

Bay, |later is better, less is Dbetter, accelerating oil
production beforehand is  better, and developing it and
i npl ementing strategies to mtigate oil losses is better. As

for Pt. Thonpson, she further offered that the nonkey is on
ExxonMobi| Corporation's back to denonstrate to the AOGCC that
bl owi ng down gas is the only feasible way to achieve production
from Pt. Thonpson as opposed to cycling to get the condensates
out first. On August 27, during a public hearing, the Prudhoe
Bay owners presented testinony to support major gas sales from
Prudhoe Bay begi nning 2025, and on Septenber 1, the Pt. Thonpson
owners did the sane for that field, she conveyed. The records
were |left open wuntil md-Septenber so the operators could
address unanswered questions, and on October 15, the AOGCC
i ssued orders allowing an increase at Prudhoe Bay and offtake at
Pt. Thonpson, she advi sed.

8:12:45 AM

M5. FOERSTER pointed to slide 7 depicting a summary of the
rulings, and said that AOGCC increased the offtake allowable at
Prudhoe Bay to 3.6 BCF/day annual average which allows, for
exanple, if there is a day when Pt. Thonpson is unable to
deliver, Prudhoe Bay can go up to whatever is needed as |ong as
t he annual average is 3.6 BCF/day. She remarked that five years

before production will start fromthe gas sales, BP nust provide
to the AOGCC a report of the projects they' ve done and results
they've achieved in oil recovery acceleration projects. She

reiterated that getting as much oil out of the ground before the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- Oct ober 26, 2015



gas sales start ensures that less is left and at risk of being
lost. She said that CO2 may not be an oil enhancing product in
the reservoirs so before it is allowed to start, the AOGCC
requires a study of all the different sources that they m ght
inject into, and where would be a good source for increasing
greater ultimate recovery in the oil reservoirs. She noted that
the AOGCC was asked to consider CO2 disposal authorization, but
that it is outside the ACGCC s jurisdiction, and is within the
jurisdiction of the EPA. She reiterated that for Pt. Thonpson a
1.1 BCF/ day offtake allowable on an annual average was granted;
and prior to major gas sales, after five years of cycling in the
pilot, and at |east one year before the startup of major gas
sal es, ExxonMobil Corporation must give the AOGCC a rundown of
what the cycling project has done and denonstrate that ful
scale cycling is not feasible. Because, she remarked, if it is,
the AOGCC may want to grant a higher offtake allowable to
Prudhoe Bay and say no to Pt. Thonpson so that Pt. Thonpson can
recover those |I|iquids. Currently, the offtake allowables for
Prudhoe Bay and Pt. Thonpson do not have a sunset clause but,
she pointed out, the AOGCC always has the ability to determ ne
and meke changes. She described these actions as a promse to
the legislature that the AOGCC endeavors to prevent waste and
encourage greater ultimte recovery.

8:17: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked why ConocoPhillips Alaska, did
not nmake a formal request for offtake, as wth the other
compani es.

MS5. FCERSTER replied that she did not know, and opined they may
have had di sagreenents but she was unsure.

8:17: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR referred to the Pt. Thonpson ruling
regarding the requirement that they nust denonstrate that
cycling isn't feasible, and noted it "seenms sort of high risk
for them due to the type of investnent that would have to be
made over the next ten years as this project noves forward. She
surmsed that if they can't denonstrate that [cycling isn't
feasi ble] that the AOGCC would probably increase the offtake so
there would still be participation in AKLNG In addition to
that they would have to do nore in oil recovery wth the
condensat e, she questi oned.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- Oct ober 26, 2015



M5. FOERSTER answered that the AOGCC is not asking [Pt. Thonson]
to spend any additional noney other than what they are already
spendi ng. She explained that [Pt. Thonmson] has a cycling pilot
pl anned for next year through to major gas sales start up. She
further explained that after five years of continuous cycling

the AOGCC requires a review of what that project has done,
| essons | earned about the performance of the reservoir, and any
other insights into the feasibility of performng full scale
cycling. She explained that with cycling, gas is produced and a
| ot of condensate conmes out with it, and the gas is then re-
injected in order for the reservoir pressure to stay high. She
offered that if the reservoir pressure continually drops, the
condensate entrained in that gas drop out into the reservoir
rather than the surface, and when the condensate drops out into

the reservoir it is there forever. She noted that before major
gas sales starts, they wll be cycling - producing the gas,
striping off the liquids, re-injecting the gas, to nmaintain
reservoir pressure. Al t hough, she acknowl edged, a little drop
out of condensates w Il occur because the pressure wll be
dropped to get "a little bit of gas out,” so it doesn't becone
the huge overriding dom nant reservoir mechanism Currently,

she noted, ExxonMbil Corporation offered that the costs to do
t he condensate recovery and the reservoir characteristics of the
reservoir conbined make it an infeasible project, and they wll
denonstrate to the AOGCC that their assunptions are correct with
the small pilot.

8:21:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether the assunption is that Pt
Thonson is an oil field due to the condensates or whether there
are there actual reserves.

MS5. FOERSTER replied that the definition of an oil well in the
State of Alaska is tied to the gas to oil ratio in production.
She explained that if the gas to oil ratio is |less than 100, 000

standard cubic feet per barrel, it's an oil well. The Pt.
Thonmson wel |l s have about 20,000 ... for every 20,000 cubic feet
of gas a barrel of oil wll be produced with it, or 20 ntf per
barrel . She advised that is what nmakes Pt. Thonpson an oil

field by the state's statutory definition of an oil well.
8:22:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON surm sed there i s not conventional oil.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- Oct ober 26, 2015



M5. FOERSTER responded there is a viscous oil layer at the
bottom of the reservoir previously determned to be between 150-
300 feet thick with a lot nore oil there, and ExxonMbi

Corporation advised it was not feasible. Since that tine, nore
wells were drilled and the belief is that the oil rimis |ess
than one-third first estimated, approximately 40 feet thick.
She noted the likelihood [is zero] that an expensive well would
be drilled, put on production, and wthin days or weeks the

thick viscous oil would no Ilonger be producing, but rather
produci ng the gas above and the water below it. Now that nore
is known about the oil rim she noted, the AOGCC is nore

confident that, with the current technology, no one would dril
an oil well in this field.

8:25:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON questioned whether it is a gas field or a
condensate field.

M5. FOERSTER replied that it is a condensate field, and the best
way to achieve greater ultimte recovery fromthe field wll be
all owing the gas to be produced.

8:25:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked about the term "re-injection" and
how it conpares to "fracturing,” in that M. Foerster had
di scussed protecting fresh ground water. He opined there has

been no denonstrated problem with fracturing or fracking, but
rather with the associated activities, and qui ered whether there
is any threat to the villages' water supply or other water
sour ces.

M5. FOERSTER inforned the commttee that 25 percent of Al aska's
wells are hydraulically fractured, and that the AOGCC updated
its hydraulic fracturing rules a few years ago. She pointed out
there has not been an incidence of ground water danage from
hydraulic fracturing in the State of Alaska. Sone people in the
states expressed concern about fracturing, and she noted that
the regulators in Pennsylvania and Upstate New York were not
prepared for hydraulic fracturing and; therefore, did not have
good regulations in place to ensure nechanical integrity in
wells to protect ground waters at the tine, but the regulations
have since been fixed. She pointed out that there were issues
not related to hydraulic fracturing, as shown wthin 1970s
gui des explaining what to do when a water well encounters
met hane - "we weren't fracking shale in Mnnesota in the 70s."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- Oct ober 26, 2015



She said the AOGCC would not allow fracturing to occur in the
State of Alaska if it posed any threat to human safety or ground
wat er . She referred to re-injecting gas and said it has the
same nechanical integrity assurances as hydraulic fracturing.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON commented that there is no fresh water
under Prudhoe Bay.

M5. FOERSTER responded that there could be |loss of integrity and
have gas cone to surface, but the AOGCC does not allow wells
that do not have good nechanical integrity to operate or be
injected into.

8:30:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarity on the 22 trillion cubic
feet at Prudhoe Bay and 6 trillion cubic feet at Pt. Thonson,
with the offtakes, and questioned whether at some point in tine
as those are being used up ... are the 22 trillion feet

recoverable so that just the offtake rate can be wused to
determine the years of supply, other than any yet to be
di scovered gas.

M5. FOERSTER answered yes, that is recoverable and is not the
gas in place - that is what BP and ExxonMobil Corporation say,
with what they know right now is recoverable, and the [years]
can be calcul ated. She agreed that it does not take into
account any yet to be discovered gas and the USGS s estimte of
gas potential on the North Slope is in the 150 Tcf. It is the
AOCCC s hope that "if we build it, they will conme," and the
pipeline will have value simlar to the Trans-Al aska Pipeline
System she of fered.

8:32: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON referred to M. Foerster's comrents
regarding studies and asked whether they are available for
anyone i nterest ed.

M5. FCERSTER answered that that the studies are confidential and
she and Conm ssioner Dan Seanmount have not seen the studies,
al though their staff signed confidentiality agreenents allow ng
t hem access. She offered that anything ExxonMobil Corporation
and BP want to share they will, and she urged the conmttee to
ask them

8:32:44 AM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- Oct ober 26, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that her discussion has been
around 28-30 Tcf, and yesterday consultants from the House
Finance Conmmittee offered a theoretical 20-year life of the gas
line, and that the state could possibly mke hundreds of
mllions of dollars nore per year if it bought out TransCanada
He asked whether she has an expectation there is gas beyond a
20-year supply.

M5. FCERSTER said that all of the known gas on the North Sl ope
isinthe two fields and it adds up to 28 trillion cubic feet of
gas. She then described the oil and gas industry as an industry
for ganbl ers.

8:33: 57 AM

MR, SEAMOUNT pointed out that, as a geologist, he has worked up
and down the Laranide Basin, which travels down to the @ulf of
Mexico with a lot of oil and gas produced. He remarked that in
all of his experience he has never seen so nuch oil and gas as
on the North Slope in that the source rocks are nuch richer than
in the Rocky Mbuntai ns. He expressed he is confident nore oil
and gas will be discovered on the North Slope in the future.

M5. FOERSTER interjected that as an engineer who works in an
i ndustry full of geologists, there has to balance between the
optim sts and pessim sts to come out with a realist.

MR. SEAMOUNT descri bed hinself as a realist.
8: 35: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether this is a puzzle piece into
a bal anci ng agreenent knowing what is there and what isn't. He
further asked whether that is part of what the producers need to
nove forward wth an offtake agreenent, or gas balancing
agr eenent .

MS5. FOERSTER offered that Representative Johnson should ask BP,
ExxonMbobi | Corporation, ConocoPhillips Al aska, and Chevron what
t hey need and what they are thinking.

8: 35: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the 1.1 BCF/ day for Pt
Thomson, and 3.6 [BCF/ day] starting in 2025 for Prudhoe Bay, and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- Oct ober 26, 2015



asked whether it is also for 2025 with the 1.1 [BCF/ day] for Pt
Thonmson adj ustabl e after com ng back with the recycling nunbers.

M5. FCERSTER answered yes, both of those allowables ... although
they are in the rules today they are with an expectation that
startup is in 2025 and [if issues arise] the AOGCC could take
t hem back.

8:.36:41 AM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR pointed to slide 7, "in 5 years BP nust
provide report of oil recovery acceleration activities and

results,” and offered a scenario of the report comng back wth
unsatisfactory results as the efforts were not in line with the
AOGCC mi ssion of enhanced recovery, and she asked how the issue
woul d be addressed.

M5. FOERSTER said w thout knowing the nunbers it is hard to say
exactly what the AOGCC would do. She added that the AOGCC woul d
be I ooking for BP to continue, as it has for many years, |ooking

for opportunities to accelerate oil, such as horizontal
drilling, and (indisc.) drilling. She said, should it slow down
t he AOGCC woul d need to know why, and | ook again at the bal ance,
how much oil is left in the ground, how nmuch is at risk of being
| ost, and how nuch gas is at risk of being stranded if the AOGCC
says no and the pipeline doesn't happen. She described the

guestion as a nulti-variable.
8:38: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to waste and balancing, "there
were different amounts of oil that was | ooking at in Prudhoe Bay

and Pt. Thonmson ... different kinds of oils but ... and they are
in different fields.” He asked when considering the Prudhoe Bay
and Pt. Tonmson offtake conbinations, which would | eave the |east
waste for both fields. For exanple, he offered, if it was

necessary to increase the offtake at Prudhoe Bay so there was no
condensate left in Pt. Thomson and |eave a greater nunber of
barrels of waste in Prudhoe Bay, asked whether that would then
be recovered in Pt. Thonson. He asked whether those are the
calculations [the AOGCC] nakes, or whether it is only on an
i ndi vidual field basis.

M5. FOERSTER replied that |awers would get involved and argue
whether the AOGCC had jurisdiction to lunp the fields and
consider the conbination of waste versus |ooking at the fields
separately. She advised the AOGCC would push for the conposite

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- Oct ober 26, 2015



- taking the position that its job is to obtain greater ultimte
recovery from fields within the State of Al aska. She remarked
that if it was necessary to sacrifice a bit at Prudhoe Bay to
get a lot at Pt. Thomson or vice versa, the AOGCC woul d assert
that and it would be up to the | awers to argue authority.

8:39:57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whether M. Foerster had considered
pooling the units to balance in that nmanner, and asked whet her
she was saying that she did not consider that at all and decided
to view them separately.

M5. FCERSTER expl ai ned that when an operator requests perm ssion
to do something the AOGCC either says yes or no, and does not
suggest an alternative. She said the AOGCC staff has
participated in years of studies with ExxonMbil Corporation and
BP, and the AOGCC felt confident those nunbers had been tweaked

to get where they were good nunbers. In the event things
change, the operators wll conme back to the AOGCC and advi se, or
through the studies it wll becone obvious, and the AOGCC can

and wi Il make tweaks if necessary, she offered.
8:42: 00 AM
ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Comm ttee neeting was adjourned at 8:42.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- Oct ober 26, 2015



